
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

 
 

___________, Individually and On Behalf 
of All Others Similarly Situated, 
 
    Plaintiff, 
 
  v. 
 
SCIPLAY CORPORATION, JOSHUA J. 
WILSON, MICHAEL D. CODY, 
MICHAEL F. WINTERSCHEIDT, 
BARRY L. COTTLE, GERALD D. 
COHEN, JAY PENSKE, M. MENDEL 
PINSON, WILLIAM C. THOMPSON, JR., 
FRANCES F. TOWNSEND, BANK OF 
AMERICA MERRILL LYNCH, J.P. 
MORGAN SECURITIES LLC, 
DEUTSCHE BANK SECURITIES INC., 
GOLDMAN SACHS & CO. LLC, 
MORGAN STANLEY & CO. LLC, 
MACQUARIE CAPITAL (USA) INC., 
RBC CAPITAL MARKETS LLC, STIFEL 
NICOLAUS & COMPANY 
INCORPORATED, and WEDBUSH 
SECURITIES INC., 
 
    Defendants. 

 

 Case No.: DRAFT 
 
 
CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT FOR 
VIOLATIONS OF THE FEDERAL 
SECURITIES LAWS 
 
 
JURY TRIAL DEMANDED 
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CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT 
1 

Plaintiff ___________ (“Plaintiff”), individually and on behalf of all others similarly 

situated, by and through his attorneys, alleges the following upon information and belief, except 

as to those allegations concerning Plaintiff, which are alleged upon personal knowledge. 

Plaintiff’s information and belief is based upon, among other things, his counsel’s investigation, 

which includes without limitation: (a) review and analysis of regulatory filings made by SciPlay 

Corporation (“SciPlay” or the “Company”) with the United States (“U.S.”) Securities and 

Exchange Commission (“SEC”); (b) review and analysis of press releases and media reports 

issued by and disseminated by SciPlay; and (c) review of other publicly available information 

concerning SciPlay. 

NATURE OF THE ACTION AND OVERVIEW 

1. This is a class action on behalf of persons and entities that purchased or otherwise 

acquired SciPlay Class A common stock pursuant and/or traceable to the registration statement 

and prospectus (collectively, the “Registration Statement”) issued in connection with the 

Company’s May 2019 initial public offering (“IPO” or the “Offering”). Plaintiff pursues claims 

against the Defendants, under the Securities Act of 1933 (the “Securities Act”). 

2. SciPlay is a social gaming business that develops and publishes a portfolio of 

digital games played on mobile and web platforms. 

3. On May 6, 2019, the Company filed its prospectus on Form 424B4 with the SEC, 

which forms part of the Registration Statement. In the IPO, the Company sold 22.72 million 

shares at a price of $16.00 per share. The Company received gross proceeds of approximately 

$341.7 million from the Offering, net of underwriting discounts and commissions. The proceeds 

from the IPO were purportedly to be used to purchase LLC interests from SG Holding I and 

SciPlay Parent LLC. 
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4. On August 1, 2019, the Company announced its second quarter 2019 financial 

results, reporting revenue of $118.1 million, only 18% increase year-over-year, citing technical 

issues with a third-party software that caused the Company’s platform to become sluggish.  

5. By the commencement of this action, SciPlay shares were trading as low as $8.85 

per share, a nearly 44% decline from the $16 per share IPO price.  

6. The Registration Statement was false and misleading and omitted to state material 

adverse facts. Specifically, Defendants failed to disclose to investors: (1) that the Company’s 

platform was experiencing technical issues that caused its core games to perform slowly; (2) that 

the Company had significantly reduced its marketing spend; (3) that, as a result of the foregoing, 

the Company had difficulty retaining users and attracting new users; (4)  that the Company’s 

pipeline could not sustain SciPlay’s historical cadence of new game launches; and (5) that, as a 

result of the foregoing, Defendants’ positive statements about the Company’s business, 

operations, and prospects, were materially misleading and/or lacked a reasonable basis. 

7. As a result of Defendants’ wrongful acts and omissions, and the precipitous 

decline in the market value of the Company’s securities, Plaintiff and other Class members have 

suffered significant losses and damages. 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

8. The claims asserted herein arise under and pursuant to Sections 11, 12, and 15 of 

the Securities Act (15 U.S.C. §§ 77k and 77o).   

9. This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter of this action pursuant to 28 

U.S.C. § 1331, Section 22 of the Securities Act (15 U.S.C. § 77v). 

10. Venue is proper in this Judicial District pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b). 

11. In connection with the acts, transactions, and conduct alleged herein, Defendants 

directly and indirectly used the means and instrumentalities of interstate commerce, including the 
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United States mail, interstate telephone communications, and the facilities of a national securities 

exchange.  

PARTIES 

12. Plaintiff ___________, as set forth in the accompanying certification, 

incorporated by reference herein, purchased or otherwise acquired SciPlay shares pursuant 

and/or traceable to the Registration Statement issued in connection with the Company’s IPO, and 

suffered damages as a result of the federal securities law violations and false and/or misleading 

statements and/or material omissions alleged herein.  

13. Defendant SciPlay is incorporated under the laws of Nevada with its principal 

executive offices located in Las Vegas, Nevada. SciPlay’s shares trade on the NASDAQ under 

the symbol “SCPL.” 

14. Defendant Joshua J. Wilson (“Wilson”) was, at all relevant times, the Chief 

Executive Office and a director of the Company, and signed or authorized the signing of the 

Company’s Registration Statement filed with the SEC.  

15. Defendant Michael D. Cody (“Cody”) was, at all relevant times, the Chief 

Financial Officer of the Company, and signed or authorized the signing of the Company’s 

Registration Statement filed with the SEC. 

16. Defendant Michael F. Winterscheidt (“Winterscheidt”) was, at all relevant times, 

the Chief Accounting Officer of the Company, and signed or authorized the signing of the 

Company’s Registration Statement filed with the SEC. 

17. Defendant Barry L. Cottle (“Cottle”) is the Executive Chairman of the Board of 

Directors of the Company, and signed or authorized the signing of the Company’s Registration 

Statement filed with the SEC. 
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18. Defendant Gerald D. Cohen (“Cohen”) was a director of the Company, and signed 

or authorized the signing of the Company’s Registration Statement filed with the SEC. 

19. Defendant Jay Penske (“Penske”) was a director of the Company, and signed or 

authorized the signing of the Company’s Registration Statement filed with the SEC. 

20. Defendant M. Mendel Pinson (“Pinson”) was a director of the Company, and 

signed or authorized the signing of the Company’s Registration Statement filed with the SEC. 

21. Defendant William C. Thompson, Jr. (“Thompson”) was a director of the 

Company, and signed or authorized the signing of the Company’s Registration Statement filed 

with the SEC. 

22. Defendant Frances F. Townsend (“Townsend”) was a director of the Company, 

and signed or authorized the signing of the Company’s Registration Statement filed with the 

SEC. 

23. Defendants Wilson, Cody, Winterscheidt, Cottle, Cohen, Penske, Pinson, 

Thompson, and Townsend are collectively referred to hereinafter as the “Individual Defendants.” 

24. Defendant Bank of America Merrill Lynch (“Merrill Lynch”) served as an 

underwriter for the Company’s IPO. 

25. Defendant J.P. Morgan Securities LLC (“J.P. Morgan”) served as an underwriter 

for the Company’s IPO. 

26. Defendant Deutsche Bank Securities Inc. (“Deutsche”) served as an underwriter 

for the Company’s IPO. 

27. Defendant Goldman Sachs & Co. LLC (“Goldman Sachs”) served as an 

underwriter for the Company’s IPO. 
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28. Defendant Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC (“Morgan Stanley”) served as an 

underwriter for the Company’s IPO. 

29. Defendant Macquarie Capital (USA) Inc. (“Macquarie”) served as an underwriter 

for the Company’s IPO. 

30. Defendant RBC Capital Markets LLC (“RBC”) served as an underwriter for the 

Company’s IPO. 

31. Defendant Stifel, Nicolaus & Company Incorporated (“Stifel”) served as an 

underwriter for the Company’s IPO. 

32. Defendant Wedbush Securities Inc. (“Wedbush”) served as an underwriter for the 

Company’s IPO. 

33. Defendants Merrill Lynch, J.P. Morgan, Deutsche, Goldman Sachs, Morgan 

Stanley, Macquarie, RBC, Stifel, and Wedbush are collectively referred to hereinafter as the 

“Underwriter Defendants.” 

CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS 

34. Plaintiff brings this action as a class action pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil 

Procedure 23(a) and (b)(3) on behalf of a class, consisting of all persons and entities that 

purchased or otherwise acquired SciPlay shares issued in connection with the Company’s IPO.  

Excluded from the Class are Defendants, the officers and directors of the Company, at all 

relevant times, members of their immediate families and their legal representatives, heirs, 

successors, or assigns, and any entity in which Defendants have or had a controlling interest. 

35. The members of the Class are so numerous that joinder of all members is 

impracticable.  Throughout the Class Period, SciPlay’s shares actively traded on the NASDAQ.  

While the exact number of Class members is unknown to Plaintiff at this time and can only be 

ascertained through appropriate discovery, Plaintiff believes that there are at least hundreds or 
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thousands of members in the proposed Class.  Millions of SciPlay shares were traded publicly 

during the Class Period on the NASDAQ.  Record owners and other members of the Class may 

be identified from records maintained by SciPlay or its transfer agent and may be notified of the 

pendency of this action by mail, using the form of notice similar to that customarily used in 

securities class actions. 

36. Plaintiff’s claims are typical of the claims of the members of the Class as all 

members of the Class are similarly affected by Defendants’ wrongful conduct in violation of 

federal law that is complained of herein.    

37. Plaintiff will fairly and adequately protect the interests of the members of the 

Class and has retained counsel competent and experienced in class and securities litigation.  

38. Common questions of law and fact exist as to all members of the Class and 

predominate over any questions solely affecting individual members of the Class.  Among the 

questions of law and fact common to the Class are: 

39. whether the federal securities laws were violated by Defendants’ acts as alleged 

herein;  

40. whether statements made by Defendants to the investing public during the Class 

Period omitted and/or misrepresented material facts about the business, operations, and prospects 

of SciPlay; and  

41. to what extent the members of the Class have sustained damages and the proper 

measure of damages. 

42. A class action is superior to all other available methods for the fair and efficient 

adjudication of this controversy since joinder of all members is impracticable.  Furthermore, as 

the damages suffered by individual Class members may be relatively small, the expense and 
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burden of individual litigation makes it impossible for members of the Class to individually 

redress the wrongs done to them.  There will be no difficulty in the management of this action as 

a class action. 

SUBSTANTIVE ALLEGATIONS 

Background 

43. SciPlay is a social gaming business that develops and publishes a portfolio of 

digital games played on mobile and web platforms. 

The Company’s False and/or Misleading 
Registration Statement and Prospectus 

44. On April 29, 2019, the Company filed its final amendment to the Registration 

Statement with the SEC on Form S-1/A, which forms part of the Registration Statement. The 

Registration Statement was declared effective on May 2, 2019. 

45. On May 6, 2019, the Company filed its prospectus on Form 424B4 with the SEC, 

which forms part of the Registration Statement. In the IPO, the Company sold 22.72 million 

shares at a price of $16.00 per share. The Company received gross proceeds of approximately 

$341.7 million from the Offering, net of underwriting discounts and commissions. The proceeds 

from the IPO were purportedly to be used to purchase LLC interests from SG Holding I and 

SciPlay Parent LLC. 

46. The Registration Statement was negligently prepared and, as a result, contained 

untrue statements of material facts or omitted to state other facts necessary to make the 

statements made not misleading, and was not prepared in accordance with the rules and 

regulations governing its preparation. 

47. The Registration Statement purported to warn of potential risks that, “if” they 

were to occur, “could” or “may” adversely affect the Company, while failing to disclose that 
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these very “risks” had already begun to materialize before the IPO. For example, regarding third-

party platforms, the Registration Statement stated: 

We rely on third-party platforms to make our games available to players and to 
collect revenue. 

Our social gaming offerings operate through Apple, Google, Facebook and 
Amazon, which also serve as significant online distribution platforms for our 
games. In 2018 and 2017, all of our revenue was generated by players using those 
platforms. Consequently, our expansion and prospects depend on our continued 
relationships with these providers, and any emerging platform providers that are 
widely adopted by our target player base.  

* * * 

In the past, some of these platform providers have been unavailable for short 
periods of time or experienced issues with their features that permit our players to 
purchase virtual currency. For example, in the second and third quarters of 2018, 
we were negatively impacted by data privacy protection changes implemented by 
Facebook, which impaired our players' ability to access their previously acquired 
virtual currency and purchase additional virtual currency. If similar events recur 
on a prolonged basis or other similar issues arise that impact players' ability to 
download our games, access social features or purchase virtual currency, it could 
have a material adverse effect on our revenue, operating results and brand. 

* * * 

Our games and other software applications and systems, and the third-party 
platforms upon which they are made available could contain undetected errors. 

Our games and other software applications and systems, as well as the third-party 
platforms upon which they are made available, could contain undetected errors 
that could adversely affect the performance of our games. For example, these 
errors could prevent the player from making in-app purchases of virtual coins, 
which could harm our operating results. They could also harm the overall game-
playing experience for our players, which could cause players to reduce their 
playing time or in game purchases, discontinue playing our games altogether, or 
not recommend our games to other players. Such errors could also result in our 
games being non-compliant with applicable laws or create legal liability for us. 
Resolving such errors could disrupt our operations, cause us to divert resources 
from other projects, or harm our operating results. 

48. Regarding technical support, the Registration Statement stated, in relevant part: 

Our success depends upon our ability to adapt to, and offer games that keep 
pace with, changing technology and evolving industry standards. 

La
w O

ffic
es

 of
 H

ow
ard

 G
. S

mith



CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT 
9 

. . . Any failure to maintain high-quality support, or a market perception that we 
do not maintain high-quality support, could harm our reputation, adversely affect 
our ability to sell virtual currency within our games to existing and prospective 
players, and could adversely impact our results of operations, cash flows and 
financial condition. 

* * * 

Our growth depends on our ability to attract and retain players, and the loss of 
our players, or failure to attract new players, could materially and adversely 
affect our business. 

. . . Players may stop using our games and related services at any time, including 
if the quality of the player experience on our platform, including our support 
capabilities in the event of a problem, does not meet their expectations or keep 
pace with the quality of the player experience generally offered by competitive 
games and services. 

49. The Registration Statement also represented that the Company was committed to 

retaining existing users and attracting new users by increasing its marketing and other expenses. 

According to the Registration Statement: “Each of our games generally requires significant 

research and development, engineering, marketing and other resources to develop, launch and 

sustain via regular upgrades and expansions, and such costs on average have increased.” 

50. The Registration Statement also led investors to believe that new game launches 

would generate future growth. For example, the Registration statement stated: 

Our ability to successfully and timely launch, sustain and expand games and 
attract and retain paying players largely depends on our ability to: minimize 
downtime and other technical difficulties. 

* * * 

Our growth depends on our ability to consistently launch new games that achieve 
significant popularity. Each of our games generally requires significant research 
and development, engineering, marketing and other resources to develop, launch 
and sustain via regular upgrades and expansions, and such costs on average have 
increased. 

* * * 

Since 2014, we have historically launched one or two new games every 12 to 18 
months, and believe we can continue to do so. 
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51. The Registration Statement was materially false and misleading and omitted to 

state: (1) that the Company’s platform was experiencing technical issues that caused its core 

games to perform slowly; (2) that the Company had significantly reduced its marketing spend; 

(3) that, as a result of the foregoing, the Company had difficulty retaining users and attracting 

new users; (4)  that the Company’s pipeline could not sustain SciPlay’s historical cadence of new 

game launches; and (5) that, as a result of the foregoing, Defendants’ positive statements about 

the Company’s business, operations, and prospects, were materially misleading and/or lacked a 

reasonable basis. 

The Subsequent Disclosures  

52. On August 1, 2019, the Company announced its second quarter 2019 financial 

results, reporting revenue of $118.1 million, only 18% increase year-over-year.  

53. The same day, the Company held a conference call to discuss these results with 

investors and analysts. During the call, Defendants admitted that technical issues on the SciPlay 

platform adversely impacted the Company’s results. Defendant Wilson stated that the Company 

“began seeing a decrease in DAU [i.e., average daily active users] mainly around our Android 

platform . . . caused by the third-party software, which caused the device itself to become 

sluggish during game play,” and that the decline in average monthly active users is the result of 

“pulling back our marketing spend in the second quarter once we identified that we were having 

the issues.” 

54. On September 19, 2019, Merrill Lynch downgraded the Company’s stock from 

“Buy” to “Underperform,” citing “lack of catalysts in terms of new games/markets to surprise to 

the upside” and the softer-than-expected growth after the IPO. 

55. By the commencement of this action, SciPlay shares were trading as low as $8.85 

per share, a nearly 44% decline from the $16 per share IPO price.  
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FIRST CLAIM 

Violation of Section 11 of the Securities Act 
(Against All Defendants) 

56. Plaintiff repeats and re-alleges each and every allegation contained above as if 

fully set forth herein, except any allegation of fraud, recklessness or intentional misconduct.   

57. This Count is brought pursuant to Section 11 of the Securities Act, 15 U.S.C. § 

77k, on behalf of the Class, against the Defendants.  

58. The Registration Statement for the IPO was inaccurate and misleading, contained 

untrue statements of material facts, omitted to state other facts necessary to make the statements 

made not misleading, and omitted to state material facts required to be stated therein.  

59. SciPlay is the registrant for the IPO.  The Defendants named herein were 

responsible for the contents and dissemination of the Registration Statement.  

60. As issuer of the shares, SciPlay is strictly liable to Plaintiff and the Class for the 

misstatements and omissions.  

61. None of the Defendants named herein made a reasonable investigation or 

possessed reasonable grounds for the belief that the statements contained in the Registration 

Statement was true and without omissions of any material facts and were not misleading.  

62. By reasons of the conduct herein alleged, each Defendant violated, and/or 

controlled a person who violated Section 11 of the Securities Act.  

63. Plaintiff acquired SciPlay shares pursuant and/or traceable to the Registration 

Statement for the IPO.  

64. Plaintiff and the Class have sustained damages.  The value of SciPlay Shares has 

declined substantially subsequent to and due to the Defendants’ violations.  
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SECOND CLAIM 

Violation of Section 12(a)(2) of the Securities Act 
(Against All Defendants) 

65. Plaintiff repeats and re-alleges each and every allegation contained above, except 

any allegation of fraud, recklessness or intentional misconduct. 

66. This Count is brought pursuant to Section 12(a)(2) of the Securities Act, on behalf 

of the Class, against all Defendants. 

67. Defendants were sellers, offerors, and/or solicitors of purchasers of Shares offered 

by SciPlay pursuant to the IPO.  Defendants issued, caused to be issued, and/or signed the 

Registration Statement in connection with the Offering.  The Registration Statement was used to 

induce investors, such as Plaintiff and other members of the Class, to purchase SciPlay 

securities. 

68. The Registration Statement was inaccurate and misleading, contained untrue 

statements of material facts, omitted to state other facts necessary to make the statements made 

not misleading, and omitted to state material facts required to be stated therein. 

69. Defendants’ actions of solicitation included participating in the preparation of the 

false and/or misleading Registration Statement. 

70. None of the Defendants named herein made a reasonable investigation or 

possessed reasonable grounds for the belief that the statements contained in the Registration 

Statement were true and without omissions of any material facts and were not misleading. 

71. Plaintiff and other Class members did not know, nor could they have known, of 

the untruths and/or omissions contained in the Registration Statement. 

72. By virtue of the conduct alleged herein, the Defendants are liable for the aforesaid 

wrongful conduct and are liable to Plaintiff and the Class for damages suffered. 
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THIRD CLAIM 

Violation of Section 15 of the Securities Act  
(Against the Individual Defendants) 

73. Plaintiff repeats and re-alleges each and every allegation contained above as if 

fully set forth herein, except any allegation of fraud, recklessness or intentional misconduct.  

74. This count is asserted against the Individual Defendants and is based upon Section 

15 of the Securities Act.  

75. The Individual Defendants, by virtue of their offices, directorship, and specific 

acts were, at the time of the wrongs alleged herein and as set forth herein, controlling persons of 

SciPlay within the meaning of Section 15 of the Securities Act.  The Individual Defendants had 

the power and influence and exercised the same to cause SciPlay to engage in the acts described 

herein.  

76. The Individual Defendants’ positions made them privy to and provided them with 

actual knowledge of the material facts concealed from Plaintiff and the Class. 

77. By virtue of the conduct alleged herein, the Individual Defendants are liable for 

the aforesaid wrongful conduct and are liable to Plaintiff and the Class for damages suffered.  

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff prays for relief and judgment, as follows: 

(a) Determining that this action is a proper class action under Rule 23 of the Federal 

Rules of Civil Procedure; 

(b) Awarding compensatory damages in favor of Plaintiff and the other Class 

members against all defendants, jointly and severally, for all damages sustained as a result of 

Defendants’ wrongdoing, in an amount to be proven at trial, including interest thereon; 
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(c) Awarding Plaintiff and the Class their reasonable costs and expenses incurred in 

this action, including counsel fees and expert fees; and  

(d) Such other and further relief as the Court may deem just and proper.  

JURY TRIAL DEMANDED 

Plaintiff hereby demands a trial by jury. 

 

Dated: _______, 2019 By:  ___DRAFT______________ 
 

GLANCY PRONGAY & MURRAY LLP 
Lionel Z. Glancy 
Robert V. Prongay 
Lesley F. Portnoy 
Charles H. Linehan 
Pavithra Rajesh 
1925 Century Park East, Suite 2100 
Los Angeles, CA 90067 
Telephone:  (310) 201-9150 
Facsimile:   (310) 201-9160 
 
LAW OFFICES OF HOWARD G. SMITH 
Howard G. Smith 
3070 Bristol Pike, Suite 112 
Bensalem, PA 19020 
Telephone: (215) 638-4847 
Facsimile: (215) 638-4867 
 
Attorneys for Plaintiff ___________ 
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